
BOARDMAN PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 27, 2015 
 
7:00 P.M. Commissioner Gray called the meeting to order. He led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Commissioners Present: Toni Connell, Adam Cole, David Gray, and Bill Hancock 
Commissioners Absent: Glaya Baker  
 
Staff: Barry Beyeler-Community Development Director, Karen Pettigrew-City 

Manager, Joanna Dahm-City Clerk, and Michelle Seeley-Recorder. 
 

Audience:  Brenda Profitt  
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Commissioner Connell motioned to approve the minutes of April 22, 2015 as presented.  Commissioner Cole 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4-0 with one absent and 2 vacancies.   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Umatilla Electric Cooperative (UEC) Facility Update  
Community Development Director Beyeler stated that they are currently working on the foundation and are 
hoping to have the facility done in 2016.  
 
Tuscany Subdivision Update  
Community Development Director Beyeler stated he saw some sub floor plumbing being installed and 
Commissioner Hancock stated he saw walls erected that day.   
 
Chaparral Park Phase I  
Community Development Director Beyeler stated that they are currently in the process of installing water 
services for 655 and 659 SW Mt. Hood Avenue. 
 
Subway 
Community Development Director Beyeler stated that construction is starting to move more quickly and most 
of the curbs are in. He hasn’t heard of a paving date.  
  
 
7:04 P.M. Public Hearing Opened  
 
PAPA II  Hearing for Desert Springs Estates Phase I  Rezone  
 
Abstentions: None Objections: None  
 
Community Development Director Beyeler read Staff Report.   
 
Commissioner Gray asked for any proponents and Brenda Profitt answered yes.  She is the President of Bella 
Vista Estates Board of Directors and is speaking on behalf of the board.  They would like to request the code 
change to allow setbacks to be reduced from seven feet to three feet to allow home owners to improve their 
homes with carports and outbuildings.  Commissioner Cole asked Brenda Profitt if the carports would impede 
on neighbors’ properties and she responded that there are already existing carports in the park and no one 
has complained about them that she is aware of.  Brenda stated that the lots are approximately 2500 square 
feet which allows for the tenants to park their vehicles and grow lawns. The front of the park is far more 
spacious than the back half of the park.  Commissioner Connell stated that she is not opposed to allowing for 
the three foot setback because the back half is already like that but she’s concerned that in manufactured 
mobile home parks you can put any year of mobile home in a park.  Brenda Profitt says the homes allowed 
in Bella Vista have to be HUD Certified or newer than July 1976. Community Development Director Beyeler 
confirmed Brenda Profitt’s statement.   

Boardman Planning Commission Minutes May 28, 2015 
                1 of 2 



Commissioner Connell reiterated she is not opposed to the set back change she just wants to make sure that 
Bella Vista doesn’t end up looking like the other mobile home parks in town.  Community Development 
Director Beyeler stated that the Building Codes Division has put together the Manufactured Dwelling and 
Parks Specialty Code to address mobile home parks so that the mobile home park boards still have to work 
with the Cities to make sure things don’t get placed over water/sewer lines .  Brenda Proffit asked if the new 
code would change the City’s responsibility for the park’s streets. Community Development Director Beyeler 
answered no because it’s not being re-platted, the City is just allowing the subdivision portion of the park to 
adhere to the same manufactured dwelling specialty codes.  Commissioner Hancock asked if the Boardman 
Fire Department reviewed the Fire Zone and Community Development Director Beyeler replied yes. 
Commissioner Connell asked who owns the mobile home park and if they would be willing to re-plat the park 
and Brenda replied they could but doesn’t know why they would. A discussion on city codes and mobile 
homes parks rules and what they entail ensued.   
Commissioner Gray asked if there are any Opponents. Community Development Director Beyeler replied that 
there are none which eliminates cross-examination and there aren’t any comments from public agencies.  
Commissioner asked for any rebuttal evidence.  None.   
 
Commissioner Gray closed the hearing at 7:33 P.M.   
 
Commissioner Gray asked for a motion to send the ordinance for approval to the City Council.  
No one motioned.   
Commissioner Connell again states she doesn’t have a problem with the set- backs she is concerned with the 
quality of homes placed in the park. 
Commissioner Gray asked if the by-laws of the park could change and Brenda Profitt explained how the 
Cooperative works and that every tenant in the park would have to agree on any rule changes.    
 
Commissioner Hancock asked what the options are if the commission doesn’t make a motion to send it on to 
City Council. Community Development Director Beyeler stated that by doing this the commission would be 
creating the same moratorium that is currently in affect. Commissioner Connell asked what a moratorium is 
and Commissioner Cole responded that the park would remain the same meaning there would be no new 
construction allowed.  Community Development Director Beyeler informed the Commission that the set-back 
change will still go before the City Council whether or not the Planning Commission sends it to City Council 
with or without its recommendation.     
Commissioner Hancock said he will not recommend it because it’s platted as a subdivision and if the council 
approves the set-back change he believes it will set the precedence for all subdivisions to change their set-
backs.  
 
Commissioner Cole makes a motion to send it before City Council with the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation for approval.   
 
Commissioner Connell voiced her concern again about the quality of mobile homes placed in the park.   
A discussion of annexation, sewer and water lines and street maintenance ensued.     
  
Commissioner Hancock seconded the motion.  
 
Commissioner Connell asked the City Manager’s opinion on the issue and she said she would approve it.   
 
 The motion passes 3-1 with one absent.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
With no other business, Commissioner Gray adjourned the meeting. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:18PM 

Boardman Planning Commission Minutes May 28, 2015 
                2 of 2 


